
 

 
 

 
Oaklands Road  
Haywards Heath  
West Sussex  
RH16 1SS 

 
Switchboard:  01444 458166 

 
DX 300320 Haywards Heath 1 

www.midsussex.gov.uk 
 

 

 
Working together for a better Mid Sussex 

 
 

19 March 2024 
 
 

PLEASE NOTE START TIME OF MEETING 
 

NOTE: There will be limited public access to observe the meeting. Those wishing to do so 
must reserve a seat by completing a Registration Form by 4pm on the day prior to the 
meeting. Access is also available via a live stream through the Mid Sussex District Council’s 
YouTube channel. 

 
 
TO THE CHARITY TRUSTEES – MID SUSSEX DISTRICT COUNCIL, 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the CHARITY TRUSTEES – MID SUSSEX 

DISTRICT COUNCIL to be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER on WEDNESDAY, 27TH MARCH, 
2024 at 6.45 pm to transact the following business. 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
  Pages 
  
1.   To be agreed by general affirmation the Minutes of the previous 

meeting held on 28 February 2024. 
 

3 - 4 

 
2.   To receive Declarations of Interest from Members in respect of any 

matter on the agenda. 
 

 

 
3.   To consider any items that the Chairman of the Charity Trustees agree 

to take as urgent business. 
 

 

 
4.   Beech Hurst Gardens Charitable Trust, Haywards Heath, West Sussex 

(charity number 305202) - Request to install automatic meter reading 
device to determine usage between tennis courts and the kiosk. 
 

5 - 8 

 
 

KATHRYN HALL 

Chief Executive 

 
 
 

https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=-eSNJDXRzEikyLq9fp6HA3WD8G8fN29PiQOsCQeBH1BUNVlKWFBBMlZJUkpSSTlVRFhSVlBXNzJZRCQlQCN0PWcu
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCW9I9y-TZXZs6jOFmOgiPyQ/videos
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCW9I9y-TZXZs6jOFmOgiPyQ/videos


 
 
 
To: Members of Charity Trustees: Councillors M Kennedy, M Miah, D Eggleton, C Cherry, 

G Casella, J Hitchcock, M Avery, G Zeidler, L Farren, J Russell, E Prescott, K Berggreen, 
C Hobbs, D Pascoe, A Platts, A Rees, P Kenny, A Bashar, P Lucraft, AM Cooke, C Wood, 
L Carvalho, M Belsey (Chairman), R Bates, A Bennett, P Brown, J Belsey, P Chapman, 
R Clarke, M Cornish, J Dabell, J Edwards, R Eggleston, S Ellis, A Eves, I Gibson, 
J Henwood, S Hatton, S Hicks, T Hussain, R Jackson, J Knight, G Marsh, J Mockford, 
A Peacock, C Phillips, D Sweatman and R Whittaker 
 

 
 

Charity Trustees - 27 March 2024



Minutes of a meeting of Charity Trustees 
held on Wednesday, 28th February, 2024 

from 6.45 pm   

Present: 

M Kennedy 
M Miah 
D Eggleton 
C Cherry 
G Casella 
J Hitchcock 
M Avery 
G Zeidler 
L Farren 
J Russell 
E Prescott 
K Berggreen 
C Hobbs 
D Pascoe 
A Rees 

P Kenny 
A Bashar 
P Lucraft 
AM Cooke 
C Wood 
L Carvalho 
R Bates 
A Bennett 
P Brown 
J Belsey 
P Chapman 
R Clarke 
M Cornish 
J Dabell 
J Edwards 

R Eggleston 
S Ellis 
A Eves 
I Gibson 
J Henwood 
S Hatton 
S Hicks 
T Hussain 
R Jackson 
J Knight 
A Peacock 
C Phillips 
D Sweatman 
R Whittaker 

Absent: Councillors A Platts, M Belsey, G Marsh and J Mockford 

1. TO BE AGREED BY GENERAL AFFIRMATION THE MINUTES OF THE
PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 13 DECEMBER 2023.

The minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2023 were agreed by Members
and signed by the Chairman.

2. TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS IN RESPECT OF
ANY MATTER ON THE AGENDA.

Councillor Bates declared an interest as he is the Council’s representative for
Beech Hurst Gardens.

3. TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN OF THE CHARITY
TRUSTEES AGREE TO TAKE AS URGENT BUSINESS.

None.

4. REQUEST FOR FUNDING FOR THE HAYWARDS HEATH AND BEECH HURST
BOWLS CLUB NEW STORAGE FACILITY (CHARITY NUMBER 305202)

Charity Trustees - 27 March 2024 3

Agenda Item 1



 

Kevin Toogood, Solicitor to the Trustees introduced the item, noting that the 
recommendation is consistent with the purposes of the Trust, which is to provide 
recreation activities for the residents of Haywards Heath.  

The item was proposed by Councillor Jackson and seconded by Councillor 
Henwood.  

The Chairman took Members to a vote on the recommendation contained in the 
report. This was agreed with 43 in favour.  

RESOLVED 

The Charity Trustees approved the release of £18,060 + VAT for a new storage 
facility at Beech Hurst Bowls Club. 

5. BEECH HURST GARDENS TENNIS COURTS.

Kevin Toogood, Solicitor to the Trustees introduced the report, noting that the tennis
court provides a revenue stream to the Trust.  The recommendation is consistent
with the purposes of the Trust and it is anticipated that the improvements will enable
the income to be enhanced.

The item was proposed by Councillor Jackson, seconded by Councillor Henwood
and a further Councillor added his support to the proposal. The Chairman took
Members to a vote on the recommendation contained in the report. This was agreed
with 42 in favour.

RESOLVED

The Charity Trustees agreed to make available up to £50,000 (excluding VAT) to
finance the renovation of all three tennis courts at Beech Hurst Gardens.

The meeting finished at 6.52 pm 

Chairman 

Charity Trustees - 28 February 2024

Charity Trustees - 27 March 2024 4



 

 

BEECH HURST GARDENS CHARITABLE TRUST, HAYWARDS HEATH, WEST 
SUSSEX (CHARITY NUMBER 305202) - REQUEST TO INSTALL AUTOMATIC METER 
READING DEVICE TO DETERMINE USAGE BETWEEN TENNIS COURTS AND THE 
KIOSK  

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR PEOPLE AND COMMERCIAL SERVICES 
Contact Officer: David Thompson – Interim Head of Estates Services & Building Control 

Email: david.thompson@midsussex.gov.uk : 01444 477406 
Wards Affected: Lucastes and Bolnore 
Key Decision No 
Report To: Charity Trustees  

27 March 2024 
 

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of the report is to seek Trustees’ approval to install a new Automated Meter 
Reading (AMR) device at Beech Hurst Gardens Tennis Courts to monitor the electricity 
usage of the access gates to the courts and the kiosk. It seeks approval of the expenditure 
of the Trust’s funds of £1,896.65 (£2,275.98 inc VAT) to lease and maintain the AMR for 
a 5-year period.  

Recommendations  

2. The Charity Trustees’ are recommended to authorise the use of the Trust’s funds 
to install a new AMR (Automatic meter reading) meter at Beech Hurst Gardens 
Tennis Courts to monitor the electricity usage of the access gates to the courts 
and the kiosk.  

Background 

3. Beech Hurst Gardens is a very popular Park in Haywards Heath which has held the 
coveted Green Flag status for over 11 years. 

4. The Council is a trust corporation and is appointed the Trustee of the above Gardens. 
The Council as Trustee comprises all the Members of the Council. Members of the 
Council are the managing trustees of the Charities. 

 
5. Beech Hurst Gardens Charitable Trust (“the Gardens”) was constituted by a Declaration 

of Trust dated 2 March 1950 when the Gardens were gifted to the Council’s 
predecessor, the Urban District Council of Cuckfield, by the trustees of the late William 
Johnson Yapp to be administered by the Council upon charitable trust. 

 
6. The objects of the Charity are the provision of a public park and recreation ground for the 

benefit of the inhabitants of Haywards Heath.  The trustees’ powers of management are 
restrictive and are limited to providing facilities for the use and enjoyment of the 
inhabitants of Haywards Heath for educational, scientific, cultural, or recreational 
purposes and for any of the charitable purposes set out in section 4 of the Physical 
Training and Recreation Act 1937 and not for any purposes that are not charitable. There 
is an express provision that prohibits use of the Charity’s property by the Council for the 
discharge of its functions as a local authority. 

Charity Trustees - 27 March 2024 5

Agenda Item 4

mailto:david.thompson@midsussex.gov.uk


 

 

7. MSDC Officers have now requested the installation of a new AMR (Automatic meter 
reading) meter to assist in differentiating the consumption of electricity at the Beech Hurst 
Kiosk and the Beech Hurst Tennis Courts. 

 
8. The Current set up for metering is as follows: 

• The main meter serving the kiosk is located within a timber housing to the side 
of the engineering workshop. There is a check meter connected directly to this 
that is located inside the kiosk.  The power for the gates has been taken from 
the distribution board within the kiosk and there is a check meter in place 
located locally to the gates. 

9. Facilities contractors Stark have provided costs to carry out the following: 
• Replace the main meter (on the side of the Engineering workshop) with an AMR 

meter and replace the existing check meter supplying the gate to the Beech Hurst 
Gardens Tennis courts with an AMR check meter. 

• These works will allow officers access to usage of the Beech Hurst Kiosk 
including the WC and usage of the gate. Usage of the Beech Hurst Kiosk will 
allow officers to recharge the Café Owner accordingly.   

Policy Context 

10. The Charity Trustees need to be aware that, in view of their dual roles as Charity Trustees 
and Members of the Council there is the potential for a conflict of interest. The Charity 
Commission is fully aware of this potential and has issued guidance to local authority 
Charity Trustees reminding them of their fiduciary duty as Charity Trustees. The guidance 
says that local authority Charity Trustees have an overriding duty to act in the best 
interests of the Charity when dealing with property vested in local authorities as Trustee. 
If there is a conflict between the interests of the Charity and the interest of the Council, 
they must disregard the interests of the Council and make their decisions as Charity 
Trustees in the best interests of the Charity even if that will be inconvenient to or 
detrimental to the interest of the Council. These rules also apply to any Charity Trustee 
who is also a member of another local authority such as a Town or Parish Council. 

Financial Implications 

11. The income generated, and expenditure incurred at Beech Hurst Gardens is split 
between restricted and unrestricted funds; the former relates to the cottages, and 
restaurant facility, with the sporting facilities being unrestricted funds. 

 
12. This Beech Hurst Trust Fund currently has a balance of £343,906.12 in its accounts.  

The Total cost to lease and maintain the AMR for a 5-year period is £2,275.98. 
 

Risk Management Implications 

13. All work will be carried out in safe and professional manner by qualified contractors and 
taking full regard of any potential hazards through their own risk assessments and 
method statements. 
 

Equality and Customer Service Implications  

14. The recommendations contained in this report do not have an adverse or negative 
impact on Equality and Customer Service. 

Charity Trustees - 27 March 2024 6



 

 

 

Other Material Implications 

15. None  

Sustainability Implications  

16. None 

Background Papers 

None 

Charity Trustees - 27 March 2024 7



This page is intentionally left blank

8


	Agenda
	1 To be agreed by general affirmation the Minutes of the previous meeting held on 28 February 2024.
	Minutes

	4 Beech Hurst Gardens Charitable Trust, Haywards Heath, West Sussex (charity number 305202) - Request to install automatic meter reading device to determine usage between tennis courts and the kiosk.
	BEECH HURST GARDENS CHARITABLE TRUST, HAYWARDS HEATH, WEST SUSSEX (CHARITY NUMBER 305202) - REQUEST TO INSTALL AUTOMATIC METER READING DEVICE TO DETERMINE USAGE BETWEEN TENNIS COURTS AND THE KIOSK
	Purpose of Report
	Recommendations
	Background
	3.	Beech Hurst Gardens is a very popular Park in Haywards Heath which has held the coveted Green Flag status for over 11 years.
	Policy Context
	Financial Implications
	Risk Management Implications
	Equality and Customer Service Implications
	Other Material Implications
	Background Papers


